Minutes of the GPNA Emergency Board Meeting on the Grant High School Upper Field Improvements Project

May 6, 2021, 8:00 pm via Zoom

GPNA Board Members Present: Ron Laster, Neon Brooks, Stacey Tipp, Vivek Kothari, Linda Burch, Jessica Decker, Marion Horna, Laurene Mullen, Lois Okrasinski. Board Secretary MaryCal Hanson was absent.

- 1) GPNA Board President Ron Laster began the meeting with some introductory remarks (Exhibit A);
- 2) Board members introduced themselves for the members of the public in attendance (a list of attending members of the public is as follows (please note, the ID of some participants is unavailable/incomplete due to the way they chose to ID themselves or call into Zoom): Daniel Kearns, Andy Mones, Mel, Kim Leathley, Jill's IPAD, Chad Jacobs, Gretchen, Scott Schwab, Kathie Tell, George Crawford, KLgodet, Nikki's IPhone, Jane Knechtel, Eric von Arx, 503-206-XXXX);
- 3) The GPNA had established a sub-committee to examine the staff report for the upper field project, and to propose mitigation efforts to minimize impacts on the surrounding neighborhood, especially U.S. Grant Place. With the Board's agreement, two Grant Park neighbors, who are also land use attorneys, led the Board through areas of agreement and disagreement between the staff report (https://www.portlandoregon.gov/bds/article/783361) and the GPNA sub-committee report recommendations (http://grantpark-na.org/wp-content/uploads/GPNA-GHS-Upper-Field-committee-Reort-to-the-Board.pdf). These attorneys are Chad Jacobs, girls' softball parent and sub-committee member, and Daniel Kearns, who was hired to represent some of the neighbors. The Board then took a series of votes on the various items under discussion. GPNA Board recommendations are summarized in a document sent to the City of Portland Hearings Office for the May 10, 2021 hearing (Exhibit B). This document includes conditions that are identical to the staff report recommendations, conditions that are modified from the staff report recommendations, and new conditions suggested by the GPNA.

Respectfully submitted, Stacey Tipp

Exhibit A

Good evening Neighbors.

On behalf of the GPNA Board I welcome you to this Emergency Board meeting

Due to work and life schedules we needed to choose a time that will afford the largest number of Board members present in order to ensure quorum.

Just as some, if not most of you, donate your time to school activities, sports activities and faith- based activities, we on the Board are here to donate our time to community-based activities.

We live in Grant Park, work, have families, and truly believe in the value and purpose of civic engagement.

We are all here tonight because we care about our community, we care about our schools and we care about our students

For the record - Requests by community members for an earlier open engagement with Parks and Schools as far back as November 2020, were ignored. So, we find ourselves at the "eleventh hour" to provide an opinion to the Hearings Officer of the Staff report.

I want to thank you for being here, I want to thank the Board members for their devotion to our neighborhood, the Committee members for their tireless work and to Board member Vivek Kothari for volunteering to act as Board Liaison to the Committee.

Whether you agree or not with the subcommittee report, I want to note that by my observation, they have worked diligently prepare their report.

I note that there has been misinformation circulating regarding this matter. For the record, GPNA has not hired or otherwise engaged the services of a Land-use Attorney.

This meeting was called for the specific purpose of responding to the staff report that will be presented to the Hearings officer on May 10

A point of note: the city had incorrectly cited the Meeting ID for the Monday hearing

It should be: 973 7291 3181

The process as outlined in the agenda is as follows:

The committee representative(s) will identify the item in the staff report that they take exception to and cite their requested edit.

The Board can ask for clarification, engage in discussion and then vote on whether to adopt the request of the Committee or not. To ensure that all the committee recommendations are heard and voted on we will take each point one at a time.

We are not hear tonight to speak for you. We are not hear tonight to negate or undermine your opinions and perspectives. Please feel free to offer you own opinions to the hearing officer as directed on the staff report.

I would like the Board to raise their hands, via zoom, introduce themselves and speak to the reason you decided to become a Board member



May 10, 2021

City of Portland Bureau of Development Services Title 33 Section, Land Use Services Division 1900 SW 4th Avenue, Suite 5000 Portland, OR 97201

Attn: Hearings Officer, Grant Upper Field Improvement

Case File: LU 20-214838 CU AD (PC# 20-191170)

RE: The Grant Park Neighborhood Association response to the Staff Report and Recommendations to the Hearings Officer.

The Grant Park Neighborhood Association (GPNA) fully supports the goal of providing the Grant High School Athletic Department and students with excellent and gender equal field opportunities and is enthusiastic about benefits the Grant Park Upper Field expansion and improvements proposed by Portland Parks and Recreation (Parks) and Portland Public Schools (PPS) will bring to Grant High School students and the broader community.

Underlining concern:

We also value the public engagement process that has been the embodiment of our city government. We value citizen participation and the voice it gives to the community. We try our best to be knowledgeable and understanding of impacts to specific areas of our neighborhood and the broader community.

We have a history of engaging with City Bureaus and Agencies on matters concerning schools, transportation, parks, safety, housing and other critical livability issues.

Over the course of the last several months, neighbors residing on or near U.S. Grant Place have voiced several concerns relative to Parks' plan of use for the field: anticipated hours and frequency of use by Parks of the upper field, plans for cleanup following events, mitigation of anticipated increased traffic, security, and others. Both the neighbors and GPNA repeatedly proposed meeting with Parks to discuss these issues, identify plans for mitigation, and collaborate on mutually agreeable solutions, beginning in November 2020. At a GPNA

General meeting on March 8th, in large part due to lack of community engagement from PPS and Parks, GPNA was forced to not support the land use application.

Following that vote, on May 5th, PPS and Parks held a joint community meeting clarifying many of these issues. The next day, GPNA held an emergency Board meeting in which we sought additional community input from all stakeholders to update our official position on this issue.

Based on this community engagement process, GPNA proudly recommends approving the application for the Grant Park upper field expansion and improvements (LU 20-214838 CU AD (PC # 20-191170)) with the following conditions to address the concerns related to livability impacts caused by the proposed changes. These conditions are designed to bring the proposal into alignment with and achieve the compliance with applicable approval criteria.

Conditions that are identical to the staff report recommendations:

- (Staff Report Condition A) As part of the building permit application submittal, each of the
 required site plans and any additional drawings must reflect the information and design
 approved by this land use review as indicated in Exhibits C-1 through C-3. The sheets on
 which this information appears must be labeled, "Proposal and design as approved in
 Case File # LU 20-214838 CU AD."
- (Staff Report Condition B) The 10 trees shown in Exhibit C-3 to be protected with tree
 protection fencing must be preserved unless determined by a certified arborist to be
 dead, dying, or hazardous. If any of these trees is removed for one of these allowable
 reasons in the future, it must be replaced with a new tree meeting the minimum planting
 requirements in Zoning Code Section 33.248.030.C.1 in the same general area of the site
 along NE US Grant Place.
- (Staff Report Condition C) The conditions of approval from LU 16-269579 CU AD
 continue to apply to the site, with the addition of the clarifying sentence above for LU 16269579 CU AD condition of approval C.
- (Staff report condition E). Non-school-related use of the Upper Field through Portland Parks and Recreation must end no later than 9:00pm, with field lights around the Upper Field turned off no later than 9:30pm.
- (Staff report condition F). The Upper Field's PA system must not be used after 9:30pm and the volume must continuously comply with the limitations in the Portland Noise Control Code (Title 18).
- (Staff report condition G). The Upper Field's PA system may be used only by Portland Public Schools for school events. Field users who reserve the field through Portland Parks and Recreation may not use the PA system.
- H. (Staff report condition I). Custodial staff must remove litter from the Upper Field area after every scheduled game.

Conditions that are modified from the staff report recommendations:

- (modified from Staff Report Condition D, changes in bold): High school sporting events (games, matches and practices) in the Upper Field shall end no later than 9:30 p.m., with field lights around the Upper Field turned off no later than 30 minutes after play/practice ends or 10:00 p.m., whichever is earlier.
- (modified from Staff Report Condition H, to avoid ambiguity): Advertiser/sponsor signage
 is prohibited on the south side of the fence facing US Grant Place. [not intended to
 prohibit signs facing into the field, not visible from the street]

New conditions suggested by Grant Park Neighborhood Association:

- 10. PPS shall have a policy to inform all visiting schools that visiting team bus parking shall occur along NE 36th Avenue and on-site in the school parking lot and that team bus parking on US Grant Place is not allowed.
- 11.PPS shall apply to and work with PBOT and GPNA on the following issues:
 - Passenger loading safety along US Grant Place, which is a major safety issue for cyclists and other road users.
 - Traffic congestion issues along US Grant Place and all intersections adjacent to the school/park property.
 - Improvements to provide better protections for pedestrians crossing US grant place, including at the NE 35th Avenue round-about.

Approved by the Grant Park Neighborhood Association Board of Directors

Ron Laster, President